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NPS Form 10-900 OMB No. 1024-0018
United States Department of the Interior
National Park Service

National Register of Historic Places Registration Form

This form is for use in nominating or requesting determinations for individual properties and districts. See instructions in National Register
Bulletin, How to Complete the National Register of Historic Places Registration Form. If any item does not apply to the property being
documented, enter "N/A" for "not applicable." For functions, architectural classification, materials, and areas of significance, enter only
categories and subcategories from the instructions.

1. Name of Property
Historic name: The Glenwood Cemetery

Other names/site number: _Glenwood Cemetery Mortuary Chapel (listed individually)

Name of related multiple property listing:
N/A

(Enter "N/A" if property is not part of a multiple property listing

2. Location
Street & number: 2219 Lincoln Road, N.E.

City or town: Washington __ State: _DC County: __N/A
Not For Publication:l | Vicinity:

3. State/Federal Agency Certification
As the designated authority under the National Historic Preservation Act, as amended,

I hereby certify that this __ nomination ___ request for determination of eligibility meets
the documentation standards for registering properties in the National Register of Historic
Places and meets the procedural and professional requirements set forth in 36 CFR Part 60.

In my opinion, the property __ meets ___ does not meet the National Register Criteria. I
recommend that this property be considered significant at the following
level(s) of significance:

___national ___statewide __local
Applicable National Register Criteria:

A B C D

Signature of certifying official/Title: Date

State or Federal agency/bureau or Tribal Government

In my opinion, the property __ meets ___ does not meet the National Register criteria.

Signature of commenting official: Date

Title : State or Federal agency/bureau
or Tribal Government
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Section 7 - Description
Summary Paragraph

The Glenwood Cemetery is located at 2219 Lincoln Road in Northeast Washington, DC, 1.5
miles north of the U.S. Capitol. Continuously active since 1853, the cemetery components
include stylistic interpretations from the Rural, Lawn Park, and Memorial Movements. The
cemetery is categorized as a site containing more than 48,000 burials and re-interments.
Although there are thousands of significant memorials ranging from elaborate monuments to
simple grave stones representing three important periods of cemetery aesthetics, this nomination
includes descriptions of nine key contributing grave markers, fifteen contributing private
mausolea, one contributing public mausoleum, four contributing buildings, and two contributing
gates, one continuous stone wall with iron fence, and one continuous iron fence that sit within
the 53.85 acres of the site for an identification of thirty-four contributing resources and ten non-
contributing resources.

Narrative Description

The Glenwood Cemetery, which includes approximately 48,000 burials and re-interments, is
sited on 53.85 acres in northeast Washington, D.C. The cemetery is defined by approximately
eight miles of roadway that meander over a gently rolling site with steeper grades at the eastern
boundary. The serpentine pattern of the road system organizes the grounds into the existing
twenty-one demarcated sections and three circles used for burials, a central circle containing a
chapel, and a grassy ellipse at the Lincoln Road entrance. [See Figure 1: The Glenwood
Cemetery Visitor Map 2000]

THE GLENWOOD CEMETERY
-2000-
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Figure 1: The Glenwood Cemetery Visitor Map, 2000

Contributing Resources

SITE

The Glenwood Cemetery is located just outside the original boundaries of the City of
Washington in what was the County of Washington, approximately 1.5 miles directly north of
the U.S. Capitol. Although originally bounded to the east by Old Bladensburg Road (now
Lincoln Road, NE) and to the north, south, and west by privately-owned farmland, today it lies
between two historic roads: North Capitol Street (the dividing line between D.C.’s western and
eastern quadrants) and Lincoln Road, N.E. The cemetery’s irregular form, which now comprises
53.85 acres, is located directly east of North Capitol Street (extended beyond the Federal City
between 1880 and 1894). The cemetery is shielded from road traffic by narrow developments of
row houses on short, dead-end streets east of North Capitol Street. Lincoln Road, N.E., forms the
cemetery’s southeast and eastern boundaries. Franklin Street, N.E. (established 1899), Trinity
Washington University (formerly known as Trinity College, 1897), and a private apartment
complex are located to the north on land formerly part of the cemetery, and to the south are
Prospect Hill Cemetery (1858) and to the southeast St. Mary’s Catholic Cemetery (1870).

The cemetery is located in the upper portion of the Coastal Plain Physiographic Province,
approximately two miles from the Fall Line, and the start of the Piedmont Province.' Elevations
above sea level within the property range from 120 to 180 feet over a rolling terrain marked by
two valleys.? [See Figure 3: 1888 Topographic Map; See Figure 2: 1994 Topographic Map]

1 USGS, “A Tapestry of Time and Terrain: The Union of Two Maps—Geology and Topography,” April 17, 2003,
http://tapestry.usgs.gov/physiogr/physio.html.

2 USGS, 1888, Washington West, D.C. Quadrangle, NOAA; USGS, 1994, Washington West, D.C. Quadrangle,
NOAA.
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Photo 1: Main Gate

The cemetery’s boundaries form an irregular polygon, with its longest side on the east running
along Lincoln Road, N.E. The gently rolling topography features curvilinear roads and burial
sections. Serpentine roads emanate from the ellipse at the Main Gate and connect to four traffic
circles, creating a web of circulation around and through the cemetery grounds. The southern
portion of the winding road system in a natural setting is based on the Rural Cemetery aesthetic.

The 54.85 acres of The Glenwood Cemetery are picturesquely landscaped, with curving roads
and carefully placed trees and shrubs framing a diverse collection of grave markers including
monuments, statuary, headstones, and plaques, mausolea, exedra, and columbaria. The terrain,
the roadway system and curbs, and placement of the trees (cherry, oak, cypress, cedar, chestnut,
holly, maple, and magnolia) and shrubs (azaleas are notable) contribute to the organization and
overall appearance of the site.

The most significant character-defining feature of the cemetery is the curvilinear vehicular road
system that was originally designed to serve horse-drawn carriages. Chapel Circle is the heart of
the road system and the smaller circles radiate secondary roads off the main Tour. The Tour was
designed to route visitors around the cemetery, leading to the high ground at the rear and the best
views. Though the Tour was never finished to de la Roche’s design, the later improvements are
consistent with the original picturesque character of the cemetery. The road system is of asphalt
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and features rolled curbing in some stretches. Early maps showing the cemetery sections and
plots are attached as an appendix to this section.

Photo 2: General view looking north from entry
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Photo 4: General view
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Photo 5: General view - Topography

Common materials for markers including monuments, statuary, headstones and plaques are
limestone, marble, granite, concrete, and metals such as zinc and bronze. The section markers
include both small, square stones carved with a single letter and simple flat metal signs on metal
posts. A few older section markers consisting of embossed and painted cast-iron shields on metal
posts are also located throughout the cemetery. [See Photo 6: Historic Section Marker)

Photo 6: Historic Section Marker
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STRUCTURES
Stone Walls and Iron Fencing

The property is enclosed by a milled-point, cast-iron fence set on a stone wall on all sides except
the southwest boundary that is shared with Prospect Hill Cemetery, where a milled-point, cast-
iron fence divides the two cemeteries. The original 30 acres were bordered by an iron fence. The
existing stone wall with iron fence was constructed in a series of campaigns starting in 1899 and
completed in 1938. Generally, the stone wall is 2’6 high with the fence rising an additional 4°6”
for a total height of 7° as exposed to the cemetery’s interior, although the wall varies in height
around the perimeter depending on the surrounding grade. The southwest boundary is enclosed
by a 6°5” high, milled point cast iron fence set into the ground, and constructed in 1921. Along
Lincoln Road and in some areas on the west boundary, the grade drops significantly between the
cemetery grounds and street level. In these areas, the stone portion of the wall also functions as a
retaining wall. [See Photo 7: Retaining Wall]

Photo 7: Retaining Wall along Lincoln Road

A section of the stone wall continues beyond the northern boundary established in 1973 when
four acres were sold to a private developer. This wall represents the boundary line established in
1899 when the cemetery’s active burial area was expanded to include the full acreage under the
corporation’s ownership following the sale of property for Trinity College. The current northern
boundary is marked by cyclone fencing, adjacent to the 1978 housing development known as
Franklin Commons.

Main Gate
Section 7- page 8



The Main Gate was constructed in 1898 and is located at the Lincoln Road entrance on the
cemetery’s southern boundary. It is formed of two square limestone piers, each topped by a
rough-cut stone, rectangular pedestal, on which rests a cast-iron urn.® [See Photo 8: Glenwood
Cemetery Main Gate]

Photo 8: Glenwood Cemetery Main Gate

Spanning the piers is a bell-curved, wrought-iron filigree banner within which are set cast-iron
letters that read “Glenwood Cemetery.” The words are separated by a scrolled finial at the top of
the curve. Wrought-iron gates with decorative scrolled detailing span the piers. The cemetery’s
Rules and Regulations are embossed on a black painted metal plaque affixed to the western pier.
The eastern pier is directly adjacent to the stone wall and fence, while the western pier abuts a
wrought iron pedestrian gate between the main gate and Gatekeeper’s Lodge. These gates were
installed in 1898.* This gate replaced the Classical Revival-style entrance lodge designed by de
la Roche that had welcomed visitors to the cemetery at the time of its opening in 1854.°

Pedestrian Gate

3 This gate was built for horse-drawn carriages, but is sufficiently wide to allow automobile entry today.
4 “Glenwood Cemetery,” The Evening Star, November 28, 1898, 7.
5 “Local Intelligence,” The Evening Star, May 16, 1857, 3.
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A second gate intended for pedestrian use, is located along the west property boundary, near the

Photo 9: North Capitol Street Gate

Once used for access from North Capitol Street where the streetcar line stopped, this smaller gate
structure is comprised of two ashlar, fieldstone piers, infilled by a double-leaf, segmental-arch,
wrought-iron entry gate. Each leaf of the gate has a solid metal lower panel, a middle section of
individual iron bars, and filigree scroll details under the curve of the arch. Spanning the piers is a
wrought-iron filigree banner within which are set cast-iron letters that read “Glenwood
Cemetery”. A cast-iron plaque presenting cemetery rules and regulations is affixed to the gate.
This gate is no longer in active use as an entry to the cemetery.
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Mausolea

There is one contributing Public Mausoleum (Receiving Vault) at Glenwood. Shown on the
original 1854 plat, the Public Mausoleum (Receiving Vault) was an essential functional
component of the cemetery operations from the beginning. Identified on the Mausolea Location
Key as #11, it was built in the classical style with elements of E6gyptian Revival, an aesthetic that
were popular in other Rural Cemeteries such as Mount Auburn.

The vault is built into the side of a small hill and most of the structure is underground, cooling
the interior to ground temperature and providing natural refrigeration. A low stone retaining wall
surrounds the entrance. The vault’s New York white marble facade features an arched doorway
and curving surround flanked by obelisks, with incised papyrus-leaf details in the upper arch.
Chevron-pattern board-and-batten double doors are located under the secondary arch, with small
glass portholes in metal frames. A later set of cast-iron picket gates with gilded lance head finials
protects the historic doors.

R s ]

Photo 10: Public Mausoleum (Receiving Vault)

As the Public Mausoleum was of limited size, Glenwood’s Board made plans to build a major
new receiving vault in 1888, but the plans were not realized.” The 1899 chapel provided some

¢ Daily ads in the Washington Evening Star for cemetery from 1854 onward state there was a mausoleum “in which
such friends of the dead as may apply can place the departed until they select sites for the graves.” There are several
mausolea in the Green-Wood Cemetery in Brooklyn, New York that are very similar to the Public Mausoleum
(Receiving Vault) in material, construction, and style.

7 “Glenwood Cemetery. A Mausoleum to be Built Costing $100,000,” Washington Critic-Record, June 5, 1888, 4 ;
“Glenwood Cemetery Meeting,” The Washington Post, June 5, 1888, 3.
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additional space but it was not until 2011 that a modern mausoleum was constructed in near the
Gatekeeper’s Lodge at the former site of the Superintendent’s House.

12 Craven

. 13 Shober

) i ! 14 Kneessi
1 n 15 Unknown Stone
2 Jenkins 16 Huguely
3 Pickford
4 Regan
5 Allen
6 Unknown Brick 1
7 Unknown Brick 2
8 C.W.Huguely
9 Boteler

10 Unknown Brick 3
11 Public Receiving Vault

Figure 5: Mausolea Location Key
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There are fifteen private family mausolea at Glenwood and all are considered to contribute to the
significance of the cemetery. The family mausolea at Glenwood are freestanding masonry
structures built to hold the remains of a single family. Each imitates a small building, with the
older examples - located along Mulberry Ave - built partially into the earth and the newer ones
standing fully above grade. The private mausolea are constructed of stone in various classical
styles or red brick in the Romanesque Revival style, and feature iron or bronze iron doors and
window bars. The construction dates for the private mausolea range from the establishment of
the cemetery in the 1850s to the mid--twentieth-century. A majority of those dating from the
nineteenth century are anchored into the hilly terrain or along the northern edge of Mulberry
Avenue, while the twentieth century examples are free-standing and located in Section S. [See
Photo 11: Mausolea on Mulberry Avenue)

Photo 11: Mausolea on Mulberry Avenue
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1. Lynch Family Mausoleum

The Lynch Family Mausoleum is, like the other mausolea, built into the hilly terrain. Its simple
face is composed of smooth limestone blocks coursed in alternating rows of thin and thick cut
stones. The fagade composition is punctuated by an arched entry opening that holds a simple iron
gate. The family name Lynch is inscribed in a center block above the entry. Its cornice
delineates a truncated gable with an unusual reversed return.

Photo 12: Lynch Mausoleum
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2. Jenkins Family Mausoleum

The Jenkins Family Mausoleum is one of the smallest mausoleums at Glenwood. Classical in
design, it is a small rectangular block composed of rough cut grey granite. A proportionally
large entry is reached via two smooth granite steps flanked by a pair of stemmed limestone urns.
The entry, which includes a pair of bronze decorated doors, is flanked by a pair of short Tuscan
columns formed of smooth white limestone. Raised by the high rough cut foundation stone, the
columns hold a rustic pediment onto which a smooth elliptical plaque presenting the year 1918 in
raised numbers is carved. A larger smooth plaque in a rectangular shape includes the name
Jenkins in a simple font of raised lettering.

Photo 13: Jenkins Mausoleum
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3. Pickford Family Mausoleum

The Pickford Family Mausoleum is simple block sheathed in smooth stucco set on a stone
foundation and capped with a stone pedimented gable roof. A frieze of Ionic ornament in low
relief runs beneath the cornice without benefit of columns. Four stone steps edged with simple
low coping lead to three more steps flanked by a pair of stone urns. The entry features a battered
surround derived from classical Egyptian design. The rectangular opening contains an
ornamented bronze pair of gates.

Photo 14: Pickford Mausoleum
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4. Regan Family Mausoleum

The Regan Family Mausoleum, constructed in 1915, is a large block of rough cut granite. It
appears as a heavy form owing to its oversized stone blocks and their rough character and deep
set entry. The block is capped by a low cornice that features a centrally placed plaque inscribed
with the date 1915. The plaque is flanked by a pair of abstract volutes. These volutes flow to the
corners of the block where the volute form becomes that of an acroterion. An exaggerated stone
lintel, onto which is carved a plaque inscribed with the name Regan, sits above the centrally
placed entry opening. Muscular stone door jambs also are abstracted in their articulation and
present in a forward battered form. A wrought iron gate features a curvilinear design flanked by
twisted rods.

Photo 15: Regan Mausoleum
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5. Allen Family Mausoleum

Constructed circa 1900, the Allen Family Mausoleum is notable for its Classical Revival Style
presented in rough-cut and polished granite. A large block of coursed rough cut granite, its
classical consists of a high rough curt stone base, supporting a pair of double Ionic columns,
which support a large entablature with a wide frieze and an exaggerated cornice. Within the
columns is a unique circular arch surrounded with smooth stones with an opening at the base that
creates the entrance. This entry is protected by a decorative bronze gate, through which can be
seen a marble sculpture of a female figure. The interior is further decorated with a mosaic
ceiling, marble walls, and stained-glass windows. [See Photos 16 and 17]

PRI =S S —

Photo 16: Allen Mausoleum

Photo 17: Allen Mausoleum, interior
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6-10. Three Unmarked Brick Mausolea, C.W. Huguely Mausoleum, and the Boteler Family
Mausoleum

The five mid- to late-nineteenth century red brick Romanesque Revival mausolea (See Items 6-
10 in Figure 5; photos 18-22) sited along Mulberry Avenue are very similar in appearance. They
were likely built simultaneously and/or by the same builder, as they exhibit similar brick facades
with round-arched entrances and stone side walls. Set into the hilly terrain, the entrances feature
a segmental arched entry door set (with the exception of the C.W. Huguely mausoleum) into a
central bay that extends approximately two feet higher than the rest of the mausoleum. The
cornice features decorative corbeled arches and stringcourses that simulate dentil moldings. The
entrances typically have solid flush iron doors. Blind round-arch niches flank each entrance.
Each mausoleum has a minor difference: Unmarked # 1 and #3 are of the same height but the
door and arch surrounds on # 1 is simpler than that used on the others. #2 and Boteler are taller,
which allows space for a limestone plaque on Boteler and flanking blind panels. Boteler also
features a unique expression of brick detailing at the door and blind arch surrounds. C.W.
Huguely is the only one with a pedimented form, but like Boteler it is taller and has a limestone
plaque with flanking blind panels.

Photo 18: Unknown Brick Mausoleum #1
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Photo 20: C.W. Huguely Mausoleum
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Photo 21: Boteler Mausoleum

Photo 22: Unknown Mausoleum #3
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12. Craven Family Mausoleum

The Craven Family Mausoleum, inscribed with the date 1933, is composed of over-sized rough-
cut granite blocks. The fagade is presented in an abstracted classical form with three granite steps
leading to a tetrastyle portico with smooth granite Tuscan columns that support a primitive
interpretation of a Roman pediment. The double bronze entry door features Roman lattice above
a solid panel. A pair of small urns is set on the stair coping which is a projection of the
foundation. This mausoleum is free-standing, sited on a plinth at grade rather than in the hilly
terrain typical of the 19 century mausolea.
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Photo 23: Craven Mausoleum
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13. Shober Family Mausoleum

Dating to 1929, the Shober Mausoleum is composed of over-sized rough-cut granite blocks. The
bronze and glass entry doors are flanked by smooth, heavily veined sandstone columns with
Egyptian capitals that support a primitive expression of a classical pediment. The family name
“Shober” is spelled out with bronze lettering above the entry, between two bronze decorative
applied ornaments. The deep set entry features a plain but prominent surround of smooth marble.
This mausoleum is free-standing, sited on a plinth at grade rather than in the hilly terrain as is
typical of the 19" century mausolea.

Photo 24: Shober Mausoleum
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14. Kneessi Mausoleum

The Kneessi Mausoleum (circa twentieth century) is composed of over-sized rough-cut granite
blocks set on a foundation of the same stone. A simplified stone pediment and tympanum also
presented in rough-cut granite is set above a simple smooth granite entry surround. The name
Kneessi is presented in raised letters in the lintel. A pair of decorative glass and bronze entry
doors are reached from a single step. This mausoleum is free-standing, sited on a plinth at grade

rather than in the hilly terrain as is typical of the 19™ century mausolea.

Photo 25: Kneessi Mausoleum
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15. Unknown Family Stone Mausoleum

The unknown family stone mausoleum (circa early twentieth century) is composed of field stone,
and features an equilateral arched entry, and a steeply-pitched, front-gable roof that is sheathed
in slate tile. Two low field stone walls extend from either side of the mausoleum, creating a
border around it. This mausoleum is free-standing, sited on a plinth at grade rather than in the

hilly terrain as is typical of the 19™ century mausolea.

Photo 26: Unknown Family Stone Mausoleum
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16. Huguely Family Mausoleum

An exceptional expression of the Art Deco style is the Huguely Mausoleum, a sleek box of
polished granite with unadorned fluted pilasters and a pair of large stone urns framing the
decorative bronze and glass entry door. Its simple abstraction of a classical form represents one

of the best examples of Glenwood’s twentieth century cemetery art.

Photo 27: Huguely Mausoleum
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BUILDINGS

The Glenwood Cemetery contains two significant buildings: the Gothic Revival-style
Gatekeeper’s Lodge, constructed in 1899 and located west of the Main Gate; and the Glenwood
Cemetery Mortuary Chapel, built in 1892 and previously listed individually in the National
Register of Historic Places. The Glenwood Cemetery Mortuary Chapel occupies the cemetery’s
original circle (Chapel Circle) near the center of the property.

Gatekeeper’s Lodge

Constructed in 1899, the two-story Gatekeeper’s Lodge is built in the Gothic Revival style.®. The
building was originally constructed with an L-shaped plan. Circa 1940, a two-bay wide addition
with gabled dormers was appended to the west (rear) elevation, making the L into a T. The
building rests on a rough-cut, ashlar limestone foundation, trimmed by a dressed limestone water
table. The walls are composed of a pale gray brick set in a stretcher bond, and the steeply
pitched, cross-gable roof is covered in standing-seam metal. Limestone coping trims the roofline.
A side gable tops the southern section, and a front gable caps the northern section. Two front-
gable roofs, placed side-by-side, cover the addition. Finials rise from the apex of each gable. A
steeply pitched, front-gable dormer pierces the east slope of the southern section of the roof. It
features two windows. A brick chimney stack with stone coping rises from the interior of the
building. Fenestration throughout the building, including the historic dormer, is comprised of
wood, one-over-one double-hung sash, each window topped by a hopper transom. The hopper
windows have a limestone lintel. The limestone string course wrapping the first story of the
building acts as a sill for the first-story windows. The windows on the half story have limestone
sills. All openings on the first story are protected by metal security bars. [See Photo 28:
Gatekeeper's Lodge)

8 D.C. Building Permit #1586 (May 9, 1899), Martin Luther King Jr. Library, Washingtoniana Division,
Washington, DC.
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Photo 28: Gatekeeper's Lodge

Moving from south to north across the first story of the east (primary) fagade, there are two
windows, the primary entrance, and two projecting bays with two windows. The primary
entrance is comprised of a single-leaf, wood-paneled door, topped by a transom, set in a
limestone surround. The three southern bays are shaded by a single-story porch that sits flush
with the two-bay-wide, projecting northern section of the facade. The porch rests on a rough-cut
stone foundation, which is accessed by five stone steps. The flat roof is supported by brick piers
with stylized stone capitals supporting a stone arcade. The brick piers are spanned by a stone
balustrade, and a brick-and-stone balustrade rings the roof. A single window is located in the
upper gable end of the northern bays. The front-gable roof is accented by stone coping and a
finial.

The north (side) elevation is four bays wide, and has a raking metal cornice. Moving from east to
west across the first story are a secondary entrance and three windows. The entrance is accessed
by four stone steps. A two-bay-wide addition was appended to the west (rear) elevation ca. 1940,
and is set flush with the north elevation of the original building.” It is veneered with yellow brick
set in a stretcher bond, and topped by paired, standing-seam metal, front-gable roofs. The roof

® Sanborn Map, 1927; Revised1959.
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Photo 30: Superintendent McKerichar and family on steps of stone dwelling, circa early1900s.
Historical Society of Washington.

Glenwood Cemetery Mortuary Chapel
(Previously listed individually in the National Register)

Built in 1892, Glenwood Cemetery Mortuary Chapel was listed in the National Register of
Historic Places in 1989. It remains unaltered since its evaluation for the National Register.'* The
chapel is a one-story brick building with a steeply pitched end-gable roof clad in slates. The
brick is laid in Flemish bond and the walls slightly flare at the base, implementing design
characteristics of the Richardsonian Romanesque and Arts and Crafts styles. Also in keeping
with these style influences, the main entrance is a pair of simply crafted, heavy wooden doors

13 Please refer to the Glenwood Cemetery Mortuary Chapel National Register Registration Form (1989) for further
descriptive information. (88003064 NRIS); D.C. Building Permit #297 (August 5, 1892), Martin Luther King Jr.
Memorial Library, Washingtoniana Division, Washington, DC.
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sheltered by a massive arch. A round window, replaced with the existing stained glass and square
bracing in 1918, punctuates the gable peak. Similar round and round-arched windows are present
on the side and rear elevations. The side elevations also feature large projecting bays culminating
in gable-roofed dormers; each bay has a pair of arched windows separated by brick pilasters and
ornamented with a denticulated brick course. The interior is relatively plain, with exposed brick
walls, a wooden pulpit, organ, and open seating area. The ceiling features heavy wooden cross-
beam trusses. The original wooden flooring has been replaced with tile, and the original altar rail
separating the seating area from the pulpit dais has been removed. The chapel was designed by
well-known Washington architect Glenn Brown, and was found to be significant under Criteria
A and C. [See Photo 31: Mortuary Chapel]

Photo 31: Mortuary Chapel
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Maintenance Building

A utilitarian maintenance building was added to the cemetery grounds circa 1950."* The building
is screened from the rest of the cemetery by a row of evergreen trees. The single-story building
has an I-plan. It is veneered with yellow brick set in a six course American-bond yellow brick,
and capped by an asphalt-shingled, complex roof. The north and south end pavilions are each
capped by a front-gable roof, and the central section is topped by a side-gable roof. A tall brick
chimney rises from the center of the building. Fenestration throughout typically consists of
wood, one-over-one, double-hung sash, accented by square brick molds and stone sills. All
windows are equipped with metal security bars.

Photo 32: Maintenance Building and Shed

The front fagade is seven bays wide. Moving from south to north across the east fagade are two
windows that pierce the south pavilion, three windows symmetrically arranged across the center
section, and two windows set into the north pavilion. Three windows are symmetrically spaced
across the north elevation. Moving from north to south across the west elevation are two blind
bays, a window, two pedestrian entrances, a garage opening, and two windows. The pedestrian
entrances are closed by single-leaf, flush, utilitarian doors of metal. Double-leaf metal doors
close the garage bay opening. Three overhead, roll-up, metal garage doors are equally spaced
across the south fagade. Ultilitarian in character, this building minimally contributes to the
significance of the cemetery.

' Nationwide Environmental Title Research, 1951, Washington, D.C., Aerial Photograph,
http://www.historicaerials.com
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Shed

A single-story, rectangular-plan shed is located west of the maintenance building. It is clad in red
brick, and topped by a built-up shed roof. A row of square windows, equipped with security bars,
pierce the east elevation, and garage bay openings are located on the west elevation. Based on
form and material, the shed was likely constructed around the same time as the maintenance
building, circa 1950. Utilitarian in character, the shed minimally contributes to the significance
of the cemetery. [See Photo 32: Maintenance Building and Shed]

OBJECTS
Grave Markers (including Monuments, Statuary, Headstones, and Plaque Markers)

The interments at Glenwood Cemetery, both below- and above-ground, are marked by a wide
variety of memorials dating from the mid-nineteenth century to the present. The forms, materials,
images, and designs of the monuments, statuary, exedrae, headstones, plaque markers, as well as
their placement within the landscape, illustrate the distinct burial practices and fashions of
various periods. [See Photo 33: Overview of cemetery)
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Photo 33: Overview of cemetery
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Photo 34: Exedrae

Common materials for markers include limestone, marble, granite, concrete, and metals such as
zinc and bronze.

Photo 35: General view of markers
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The overwhelmingly popular fashion of the Rural Cemetery Movement during the 1830s through
the 1850s influenced the style, form, detailing, materials, and inscriptions of the initial markers at
Glenwood Cemetery. The individually-created markers were often so grand as to be categorized
as monuments and presented images of hope and immortality. These markers often have highly
detailed statuary and sculpted figures; trees and foliage; ornate obelisks on carved bases; broken
architectural elements, such as obelisks, columns; logs, furniture, such as chairs and benches;
and religious symbols, such as angels, hands in prayer, and crosses. Pictorial symbols of
remembrance include logs, trees, birds, animals, robes and veils, drapery, and urns. Notably,
there are also markers that incorporate a figure of a sleeping child or a recumbent lamb,
reflecting the death of an infant or child.

The first marker to be placed at Glenwood was a simple stone tablet. This marker, which
identified the first interment at Glenwood, was actually the re-interment of Mary Ann Donn from
Congressional Cemetery. Mrs. Donn’s marker is adorned only with a carved form a horizontally
oriented French bracket at its top. Set directly into the ground, it is inscribed with the words:
“Mary Ann/ consort of Thomas C. Donn/born in Philadelphia June 12, 1805/ Died in
Washington, D.C. July 22, 1854/ Aged 49 Years/ Wife. Mother. Friend./ The First Occupant of
Glenwood.”"® [See Figure 6: Historic image of headstone of Mary Ann Donn]

i

Figure 6: Historic image of headstone of Mary Ann Donn
Source: Glenwood Cemetery Archive

15 « Ancient Glenwood Cemetery Completes Its First Century,” The Washington Post, July 29, 1954, 8.
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In October 1854, the first large, sculptural monument was erected in Glenwood Cemetery.
Designed by the wife of Joseph M. Tastet to mark his grave, it was sculpted by William
Alexander Gaddess, a stonecutter from Baltimore, Maryland. Although damaged by acid rain,
the Italian marble obelisk originally incorporated a broken oak tree (a common symbol of death
of a person with a respected character) and the motto “cleave not to earth.” The impression of the
carving can be detected on site. [See Photo 36: Joseph M. Tastet Monument]
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Photo 36: Joseph M. Tastet Monument

In 1858, the Columbia Fire Company erected an elaborate monument for Benjamin Grenup, a
young firefighter believed at that time to be the first to die in the line of duty in Washington. The
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marble obelisk supported by a carved base was sculpted by Charles Rousseau, and graphically
depicts Greenup’s tragic death while responding to an emergency. The monument is also
embellished with elaborately carved reliefs of firefighting equipment and an inscription
commemorating Greenup’s life. Set on a triangular plot at the intersection of Chestnut Avenue
and Chapel Ci<ns1:XMLFault xmlns:ns1="http://cxf.apache.org/bindings/xformat"><ns1:faultstring xmlns:ns1="http://cxf.apache.org/bindings/xformat">java.lang.OutOfMemoryError: Java heap space</ns1:faultstring></ns1:XMLFault>